1956

University of Utah v. Board of Examiners of the State of Utah et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This is an appeal from a judgment of the Third Judicial District Court in and for Salt Lake County, the Honorable Martin M. Larson presiding. This action was brought by respondent in the form of a petition for intervention in the case of *University of Utah v. Board of Examiners, et al.*, now pending before this Court. The motion to intervene

was granted. A judgment was entered settling the dispute between the University and the Board of Education. Thereafter, by stipulation of all parties, approved by the trial court, the matters between the University of Utah and Board of Examiners, on the one hand, and the State Board of Education and the Board of Examiners, on the other hand, were separately argued and separately determined. Thus, the two branches of the case are now in fact two separate cases independent of one another.

By their complaint, the State Board of Education sought a declaratory judgment as to certain issues which may be generally classed as follows:

(1) Whether the Board of Examiners has authority to examine and approve or disapprove expenditures previously authorized by the State Board of Education and, if so, whether the exercise of such authority is discretionary or ministerial.

(2) Whether the Commission of Finance has authority to examine and approve or disapprove expenditures previously authorized by the State Board of Education and, if so, whether the exercise of such authority is discretionary or ministerial.

(3) Whether the Commission of Finance has authority to approve or disapprove appointments of employees made by the State Board of Education.

(4) Whether the Budget Officer, in conjunction with the Governor, has authority to approve or disapprove work programs submitted by the State Board of Education.

(5) Whether the Attorney General has the right to disapprove the appointment of independent legal counsel to represent the State Board of Education in cases involving disputes with another department or agency of the State.

These issues were submitted to the court on the pleadings, stipulation of facts (R. 24-56) and documentary evidence introduced by respondent (R. 78) over the objection of appellants. No witnesses testified. Briefs were filed and oral argument was had. Thereafter, the trial court rendered its opinion (R. 57-68) and granted judgment to respondent (R. 72-73).

As we understand the opinion and judgment of the trial court, it was determined:

(1) That the Board of Examiners has no jurisdiction over expenditures for salaries but does have a limited ministerial authority over all other expenditures of the State Board of Education.

(2) That the Commission of Finance has only a limited ministerial authority over expenditures of the State Board of Education.

(3) That the Commission of Finance may disapprove the appointment of employees of the State Board of Education unless such employees are "experts or specially qualified personnel."

(4) That the Budget Officer and the Governor have no authority to disapprove work programs submitted by the State Board of Education unless such work programs exceed appropriated funds.

(5) That the State Board of Education may retain legal counsel, independent of the Attorney General, when the Attorney General represents another department with which the Board of Education has a dispute.

As can be seen, the results sought and the judgment granted relate primarily to supervision of the financial activities of the State Board of Education by other state departments and agencies. As the State Board of Education and the agencies it controls is one of the three largest departments of the State, spending from one fourth to one third of total State revenues, the result of this case is of great importance. We suggest, however, that because of the reasons advanced for the judgment, the judgment, if sustained, would also have far-reaching effects on the financial operations of all departments of the State as well as the State Board of Education. Furthermore, the theory and conclusion of the trial court that the State Board of Education is a fourth branch of government with constitutionally vested powers would alter the present relationship of the State Board of Education to the Legislative and Judicial as well as the Executive Branches of our State Government. We ask the Court to keep these broader aspects in mind when considering this case.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I

BY OUR CONSTITUTION, THE BOARD OF EXAMINERS HAS DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY TO APPROVE OR DISAPPROVE

ALL EXPENDITURES OF THE STATE BOARD
OF EDUCATION.

POINT II

BY STATUTE, THE BOARD OF EXAMINERS
HAS DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY TO AP-
PROVE OR DISAPPROVE EXPENDITURES
OF THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION.

POINT III

THE COMMISSION OF FINANCE, AS AGENT
OF THE BOARD OF EXAMINERS OR BY
STATUTE, HAS POWER TO APPROVE OR
DISAPPROVE EXPENDITURES MADE BY
THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION.

POINT IV

THE COMMISSION OF FINANCE IS AUTHOR-
IZED AND REQUIRED BY STATUTE TO AP-
PROVE OR DISAPPROVE ALL APPOINT-
MENTS OF EMPLOYEES MADE BY THE
STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION, INCLUDING
EXPERTS AND SPECIALLY QUALIFIED PER-
SONNEL.

POINT V

THE DUTY OF THE BUDGET OFFICER,
UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE GOVER-
NOR, TO APPROVE OR DISAPPROVE WORK
PROGRAMS SUBMITTED BY THE STATE
BOARD OF EDUCATION, IS CONSTITU-
TIONAL.

POINT VI

THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION IS NOT A FOURTH BRANCH OF STATE GOVERNMENT.

POINT VII

IN DISPUTES BETWEEN STATE DEPARTMENTS, THE ATTORNEY GENERAL HAS DISCRETION TO REFUSE TO APPOINT COUNSEL.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

BY OUR CONSTITUTION, THE BOARD OF EXAMINERS HAS DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY TO APPROVE OR DISAPPROVE ALL EXPENDITURES OF THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION.

Article VII, Section 13, Constitution of the State of Utah provides:

“Until otherwise provided by law, the Governor, Secretary of State and Attorney General shall constitute a Board of State Prison Commissioners, which Board shall have such supervision of all matters connected with the State Prison as may be provided by law. They shall, also, constitute a Board of Examiners, with power to examine all claims against the State, except salaries or compensation of officers fixed by law, and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by law; and no claim against the State, except for salaries and compen-

sation of officers fixed by law, shall be passed upon by the Legislature without having been considered and acted upon by the said Board of Examiners."

This or similar provisions are contained in the constitutions of only four states: Utah, Idaho, Nevada and Montana. In all these states, the Board exercises highly important functions commensurate with the position of the members of the Board who, as the highest elected officials of the respective states, are directly responsible to the people.

It is our contention that under the Utah Constitution, the Board of Examiners has the right and responsibility to approve or disapprove expenditures of state funds by all departments and agencies of the State, including the State Board of Education. This is not a mere ministerial function but an authorization to inquire into the advisability or necessity of a particular expenditure. It is obvious that the Board also has the authority to deny illegal expenditures of public funds. There is one exception to the jurisdiction of the Board—salaries or compensation of officers fixed by law. As will appear from the cases, this exception is limited to salaries or compensation fixed in a sum certain by the Legislature and does not include salaries or compensation fixed by a board, department or agency of the State other than the Legislature.

The primary check on the power of the Board is by appeal to the Legislature whose decision is final. A second check on this power is through the courts who can (1) prevent arbitrary action by the Board, (2) require the Board to take some action on a claim, to either approve or

disapprove it, but not control the discretion of the Board to either approve or disapprove, and (3) require approval of a claim where the *sole* reason for its disapproval was a misinterpretation of the legality of the claim by the Board (this third situation should be distinguished from disapproval of a claim where the Board regards it an unnecessary or unwise expenditure of state funds—in that event, a court can only inquire into the arbitrariness, if any, of the action taken, the claimant being left with an appeal to the Legislature on the question of the advisability of the expenditure).

A. *The Jurisdiction of the Board of Examiners.*

1. *Generally.*

A clear statement of the jurisdiction of the Board of Examiners is found in *State ex rel. Davis v. Edwards*, 33 Utah 243, 93 Pac. 720. There, a claim was made by a court stenographer, appointed by a district judge pursuant to statute, for mileage allowed him by statute for travel in the course of his official duties. The amount claimed had been approved and certified as correct by the District Judge, all in compliance with the applicable statute (Secs. 1 & 2, Ch. 72, Laws of Utah 1899). The statute in question required the Auditor to draw his warrant for the amount certified by the District Judge with no requirement that the claim be approved by the Board of Examiners. Notwithstanding, the Court held that the claim must first be submitted to the Board by virtue of Article VII, Section 13—a mandatory provision which could not be avoided by the claimant, the Legislature, or a court.

The Court stated (33 Utah at 250) :

“The attempt by the Legislature to require the Auditor to allow a claim which by the Constitution must first be approved by the Board of Examiners can avail nothing. *The Auditor is bound by the constitutional provision. The Legislature is so bound, and so are we.* The Legislature may make certain evidence conclusive with regard to a specific matter, but it may not interfere with powers conferred or duties imposed by the Constitution. This in effect is what is attempted to be done in section 2, c. 72, p. 112, aforesaid. To the extent that the provisions of that section are in conflict with the constitutional provision governing salaries and compensations of officers fixed by law, the Constitution must prevail. * * *” (Emphasis added.)

Uintah State Bank v. Ajax, 77 Utah 455, 297 Pac. 434, was an action seeking mandamus against the State Auditor to compel issuance of warrants in payment of bounty certificates. Admittedly, all the requirements of the bounty law had been met and the sole question was whether the bounty claims must be approved by the Board of Examiners before payment where the applicable statute made no such requirement. The Court held first that the bounty claims were claims against the State as they were claims for money “paid into the state treasury * * * subject to appropriation by the Legislature, and [payable only] by the state treasurer on warrant of the state auditor.” It was argued that the claims were fixed by law at so much per pelt, became liquidated demands when the county clerk certified the number of pelts, and thus did not come within the jurisdiction of the Board. The Court replied that the only exception to the jurisdiction of the Board is “salaries

and compensation of officers fixed by law." Furthermore, (77 Utah at 465) :

"If we should adopt petitioner's view it would follow that the Legislature might designate any officer other than the board of examiners as authorized in behalf of the state to settle, fix, or liquidate claims and agree upon the amount to be paid thereon, and thereby exclude the board of examiners from its duty and responsibility with respect to claims thus liquidated pursuant to legislative authority. We cannot agree to any such construction of the constitutional language, nor may we by construction interpolate the word 'unliquidated' into the Constitution so that it would provide that the board of examiners have power to 'examine all unliquidated claims against the State,' etc. The Constitution has vested in the board of examiners the power to examine and pass on all claims except those exempted, and the Legislature is without authority to delegate such power to any other board or officer."

It is obvious from the above quotation and by the Court's reliance on language from *State v. Edwards, supra*, that the Court was speaking of the authority of the Board of Examiners under the Constitution not merely its authority under statutes declaratory of the Board's constitutional powers.

The most recent case relating to the authority of the Board of Examiners is *State Board of Education v. Commission of Finance*, (Utah 1952), 247 P. 2d 435. It is true that the principal question in that case was the legality of the composition of the Board of Education which was raised as a defense to a claim for payment of the salary of the

State Superintendent of Public Instruction, but it is significant that more than one-third of the argument of the Board of Education was devoted to a discussion of the exclusive constitutional jurisdiction of the Board of Examiners. (See S. Ct. Briefs and Abstracts, Case No. 7785.) The validity of this argument was recognized when the Court said (247 P. 2d at 439) :

“At a meeting of the State Board of Education on October 5, 1951, the Board appointed Dr. Bateman to the office of State Superintendent of Public Instruction and fixed his salary at \$10,000 per annum. The Board of Examiners (composed of the Governor, Secretary of State and the Attorney General) *which must approve all salary claims against the state, except those fixed by law*, approved by a vote of two to one the request of the Board of Education to pay Dr. Bateman a salary of \$10,000 per annum.” (Emphasis added.)

See also *Wilkinson v. State*, 42 Utah 483, 134 Pac. 626; *Dall v. State*, 42 Utah 498, 134 Pac. 632; *Campbell Bldg. Co. v. State Road Comm.*, 95 Utah 242, 70 P. 2d 857, all of which held the Board of Examiners, not the courts, has exclusive jurisdiction of claims against the State.

The Idaho cases conform to the above decisions in Utah. In *Pyke v. Steunenbergh*, 5 Ida. 614, 51 Pac. 614, it was held that the Board of Examiners must approve a claim for supplies furnished the state insane asylum, a state institution created by the constitution (Art. X, Sec. 1, Idaho Constitution). This was so even though the board of directors for the insane asylum had audited and approved the claim. The court expressly recognized the discretionary powers of

the Board and refused to order it to decide in a certain way. The court did order the Board to take some action but refused to order a certain decision to be made.

Bragaw v. Gooding, 14 Ida. 288, 94 Pac. 438, presented the situation of disapproval by the Board of Examiners of the salary of certain employees of the State Auditor, a constitutional state officer (Art. IV, Sec. 1, Idaho Constitution). The court upheld the Board even though it was admitted that the employees were necessary for the conduct of the office, that without them the auditor could not perform the duties required of him by law, and that the salaries were just and within the appropriation made by the Legislature. The court held it was without power to set aside and annul the constitution and statutes of Idaho by overturning the Board's decision. The court stated:

"If the contention of the plaintiff be correct that it was the duty of the State Board of Examiners to allow the claims as he presented them, then there would be no necessity for a state board of examiners so far as the auditor's office was concerned, as he would be his own examining board and could allow such claims as he might deem proper so long as the same were within the appropriation made by the Legislature. This, in effect, would take from the State Board of Examiners the authority expressly given it by the Constitution and laws of this state." (94 Pac. at 440.)

In *State ex rel. Hansen v. Parsons*, 57 Ida. 775, 69 P. 2d 788, the court considered a statute appropriating money to cover expenditures from the state insurance fund incurred in excess of the appropriations for the previous biennium. These claims had not been approved by the Board

of Examiners before the Legislature enacted the subsequent appropriation. The court held this unconstitutional since the Constitution of Idaho prohibited the Legislature from passing upon claims which had not been considered and acted on by the Board of Examiners. The previous Idaho cases were discussed and the constitutional jurisdiction and authority of the Board of Examiners was reaffirmed.

In *State ex rel. Taylor v. Robinson*, 59 Ida. 485, 83 P. 2d 983, the court held individual claims for unemployment compensation must be passed upon by the Board of Examiners even though federal funds in the custody of the State Treasurer were used to pay such claims.

“No reflection upon the board or any of its employees is intended or asserted by this argument, but *the Constitution sets up what were considered by its framers as essential safeguards as to the expenditure of public funds generally*. All funds in the hands of and under the control of the State—the only exception being as to the coordinate constitutional body the State Board of Education—must be disbursed under the supervision and control of the State Board of Examiners, and the people by not amending the Constitution in these particulars have continued to sanction and leave effective these safeguards, and asserted expediency, if there be such, may not dissolve them.” (83 P. 2d at 985, emphasis added.)

In *Suppiger v. Enking*, 60 Ida. 392, 91 P. 2d 362, the court held that appropriations could not be used by any state agency to establish revolving funds without the approval of the Board of Examiners.

See also *Gem Irr. District v. Gallet*, 43 Ida. 519, 253 Pac. 128; *Curtis v. Moore*, 38 Ida. 198, 221 Pac. 133; *Davis*

v. *State*, 30 Ida. 137, 163 Pac. 373; *Epperson v. Howell*, 28 Ida. 338, 154 Pac. 621; *Kroutinger v. Board of Examiners*, 8 Ida. 463, 69 Pac. 279.

In Nevada, the case of *State v. Hallock*, 20 Nev. 326, 22 Pac. 123, is in point. A statute appropriated money and authorized counties to claim reimbursement for expenses incurred as agents of the state in the conduct of a special election. The claim was to be certified by the respective boards of county commissioners and the state controller was then required to draw his warrant for the amount certified. Mandamus was sought against the controller for refusing to draw his warrant for the full amount of such a claim. He defended on the ground that the Board of Examiners had approved a lesser amount than that certified by the county. The court upheld this contention even though the statute in question did not require approval by the Board of Examiners. Other statutes (similar to the Utah statutes listed in Stipulation, par. 5, p. 3, R. 27) required approval by the Board of Examiners. The court stated that these other statutes required submission to the Board of Examiners; and it added, assuming these general statutes were repealed as to claims under the election statute, the Constitution of Nevada itself required submission to the Board of Examiners and gave it the power to approve or disapprove such claims. The court further said in answer to the argument that a claim authorized by statute and appropriation was not within the jurisdiction of the Board:

"The most numerous and important claims against the state arise from the contingent expenses incurred in support of the government, and which

must be met as they arise. In view of the manifest purpose of the constitution to protect the treasury by requiring the board of examiners to adjust all claims, it cannot be held that the many and important claims arising against the state, and which, as claims, have never been acted upon by the legislature, are exempted from the investigation of the board. Without stating at length the various positions taken by relator, there is an insuperable objection common to all. Each contention involves an exemption of the claim of the county from the action of the board of examiners, and each is conclusively answered by the provisions of the constitution defining the duties of the board. *It is not within the power of the legislature to confer this authority elsewhere.*" (22 Pac. at 124, emphasis added.)

The Montana cases have restricted the authority and jurisdiction of Montana's Board of Examiners contrary to our contentions, but in doing so are contrary to the weight of authority as shown by the Utah, Idaho and Nevada cases.

2. *The Jurisdiction of the Board of Examiners Includes Claims of State Officers for Salaries Not Fixed by Law.*

The court below decreed that expenditures of all state departments and agencies were claims within the jurisdiction of the Board of Examiners (Par. 5, R. 70, 73). This is in accordance with the Utah cases of *State v. Edwards*, supra, and *State Board of Education v. Commission of Finance*, supra, as well as the Idaho cases cited. However, two exceptions were made: Compensation of officers fixed

by law, and salaries of state officers and employees whether fixed by law or not (Par. 4, R. 70, 73). With the first exception, we agree—with the last, we disagree.

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