1956

University of Utah v. Board of Examiners of the State of Utah et al : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

“Confer upon the Board of Examiners power to pass upon claims against the Board of Regents, would make the latter board subservient to the former, and in the final analysis would operate to deprive the Board of Regents of the control and direction of the funds of an appropriation to the University.” *State v. State Board of Education*, *supra*.

The exhibits filed in this action are conclusive of the fact that the Board of Examiners have exercised complete control over the Board of Education by virtue of supervising expenditure of funds. Such control is exercised to such an extent the Board of Education cannot even employ janitors on a temporary basis on up to employment of directors of institutions, creation of research departments, etc., without first securing approval of the Board of Examiners.

The Defendant cannot consistently argue that as to the University of Utah all sections of the Constitution should be given effect, and yet as to the Board of Education the section establishing the Board of Examiners should have precedence over the section establishing and defining the duties of the Board of Education.

The Appellant under Point 4, has chosen to interpret and take issue with a selected statement made by the trial judge which is not determinative of this case. Whether the educational department of the state government is or is not classified as a fourth branch of government is not the important issues. Likewise, the issue here presented is not "Can the people by constitutional amendment modify the vesting of authority in the Board of Education?" Education has been of paramount importance in the State of Utah. It received considerable attention at the Constitutional Convention, and was separately treated in the Constitution.

The issue here is one of constitutional construction, of whether one board created by the constitution shall be

permitted to dominate another constitutional agency. The trial court, in rationalizing the intent of the framers of the constitution and the two sections involved, points out the vesting of control in the Board of Education not the chief executive or any other official. The Board of Education makes no claim that it is not subject to the laws of the Legislature, providing such laws are not in conflict with constitutional provisions.

In view of the Respondents' position that the Board of Examiners has no authority over claims originating with a state agency or that the authority of the Board of Examiners, if any, is limited to the performance of ministerial duties, it is not necessary to extend this brief by discussing the particular meaning of the exception "salaries or compensation fixed by law." Reference is made to the able discussion of this issue contained in the opinion of the trial judge.

F. The specific authority of the Board of Education should have precedence over the incidental and general authority of the Board of Examiners.

The State Board of Education is given the specific and primary duty of supervising the educational system of the state, while the Board of Examiners are given the authority to examine claims only as an incidental or secondary duty.

The Defendants completely ignore the foregoing proposition and make no attempt to answer the same in their brief. Rather, they take the position that the

Board of Examiners not only have the power, but must, examine all claims and disbursements against the state. Such a position as a practical matter is illogical. The early Nevada case of *Lewis v Doron*, supra, recognized that a practical interpretation of the authority of the Board of Examiners must be given stating:

“It must be remembered that this board is composed of state officers, having other high and responsible duties imposed and powers given by the constitution—this matter of examining claims being only an addition thereto; so if there be any force, any argument that they are rendered subordinate, still such subordination is in only one particular, outside the special powers pertaining to their general official position.”

All of the arguments advanced by the Nevada Court apply with equal force to the present case. If it were not thought feasible to burden the three top state officials with the full responsibility of approving all disbursement of funds in 1870, it cannot logically be maintained that in practice such officials should be compelled to perform such collateral duties under present-day conditions.

The provision creating the Board of Examiners is as though it were an amendment or an afterthought, being attached to the section of the Constitution creating the Board of State Prison Commissioners. If the framers intended to create an all-powerful board, having authority over all appropriated funds, the section accomplishing such a purpose would have received some specific discussion at the Constitutional Convention and would

have been stated separately and not as an appendage to a group of miscellaneous sections creating administrative agencies to function "until otherwise provided by law."

G. The nine members of the Board of Education are direct representatives of the people, having been elected by them.

The nine members of the State Board of Education are elected by the people and accountable to the people.

The Defendants ignore this fact and contend the Governor should have authority to exercise budgetary control being responsive to the people. They argue:

"Cries of destruction of constitutional government are not only an overstatement but completely false. In fact, constitutional government is strengthened for the responsibility for excessive expenditures or too drastic decreases in funds is placed directly on the governor. Public opinion and the exercise of the vote can thus operate not only on the Governor but on the legislature to modify the powers granted. This is constitutional government. Insulation of bureaucrats from the electorate and their indifference to public opinion is replaced by a system responsive to public demands and requirements."

This argument sounds in politics not law; but considered as political it also fails.

The Supreme Court in the other phase of this lawsuit involving the University of Utah recognized that

a distinction should be made where a Board of Regents was appointed as contrasted to a Board of Regents elected by the people. This distinction was relied upon to distinguish the constitutions of Michigan and Colorado as compared to the constitution of the State of Utah.

H. There are other adequate safeguards for the disbursement of public funds.

It is the Respondent's contention that disbursement of funds duly appropriated by the Legislature to the Respondent for disbursement are not subject to the review of the Board of Examiners. The Board of Examiners or such other agency as is delegated to review miscellaneous and incidental claims has no authority to interfere with the administration of the policies of specific agencies equally accountable to the people as the Board of Education. There are sufficient accounting procedures to insure that the funds are disbursed for public purposes and that the funds are adequately appropriated for the expenditures made.

The Respondent does not contend that it cannot be required to submit its claims for a pre-audit to determine if they are for public purposes and within its appropriation. The Respondent is called upon to prepare budgets in advance and to submit its accounts to both a pre-audit and a post-audit.

Section 63-6-19, U.C.A. 1953, (Par. 23, Count 2 of the Stipulation) specifically prohibits any board or commission from authorizing expenditures in excess of

their appropriations and further provides that so to do would subject the members to a criminal complaint charging a misdemeanor.

Section 67-10-1, (Par. 26, Count 2, Stipulation) specifies that all of the boards and commissions of the state shall file biannual reports setting out in detail under oath the manner in which all appropriations have been expended.

Section 5, Article 7 of the Constitution outlining the duties of the Governor specifically provides that the Governor may require from any officer or executive department any information relating to its condition, management and expenses.

Certainly all of these provisions set up an adequate safeguard for the expenditure of public funds to insure honest handling of public funds and public airing of expenditures of the Board of Education. All of these safeguards are completely ignored by the Defendants, and it is then insisted that greater protection is needed for state funds, and that the Board of Examiners must examine all expenditures before the money is paid. A claim only arises when a demand for payment of money is presented. The absurd position of Defendant's contention is that the Board of Education may receive supplies and materials, may accept services, may enter into contracts, may instigate policies, and after the services have been performed, materials received and payment is to be made, at that time a claim arises which must be examined by the Board of Examiners

before payment can be made. We then have the ridiculous situation of a Board of Education with power to contract but not power to perform, with power to agree upon terms of payment, but with no power to insure payment. Numerous instances appear in Exhibit 2.

Must it be presumed that the framers of our constitution found that the balance of integrity rests with Appellants?

I. The statutory authority of the Board of Examiners does not contemplate review of disbursements authorized by the Legislature through the Board of Education.

It is only logical that some agency be authorized to review miscellaneous personal claims against the state. If the amount is unliquidated or evidence is required, some claims tribunal must investigate into the matter and verify the claims for payment if an appropriation has been made or to make a recommendation to the Legislature for an appropriation if none has been made. It is illogical to require review by the Governor, Secretary of State, and Attorney General of all payments of money authorized for specific purposes by agencies specifically authorized by the Constitution and to whom an appropriation has been made by the Legislature. Certainly the Nevada decisions made such a practical interpretation and the Utah legislature so intended when it provided that monthly bills be approved by the governing board which incurred the obligations and then warrants would be drawn by the auditor. (Sec. 64-1-16, U.C.A. 1953)

The state needed some court of claims or agency to review miscellaneous and incidental claims which may be presented by people who felt that they were entitled to some relief at the expense of the state. Such a body could be of great service in sifting facts and investigating the demands and in those cases where no appropriation had been certifying those facts to the Legislature for its consideration. Similar claims of a miscellaneous and incidental nature for which an appropriation had been made if they were not within the usual and normal jurisdiction of other branches of the government should likewise be determined by a board having the authority generally to hear such claims and to determine that they were just and proper.

After the constitutional provisions were determined, the Legislature in 1896 enacted the following three sections which implemented the provisions of Section 13 of Article VII.

The claims for which an appropriation has been made are dealt with in Section 63-6-7 which provides:

*“Any person having a claim against the state for which an appropriation has been made may present the same to the Board in the form of an account or petition * * * and the Board must allow or reject the same in the order of its presentation.” * * **

The second type of claim against the state is dealt with in Section 63-6-10, which provides:

“If no appropriation has been made for the payment of any claim presented to the board,

the settlement of which is provided for by law, or if an appropriation made has been exhausted, the board must audit the claim, and, if it is approved, must transmit it to the Legislature with a statement of the reasons for the approval.” (Emphasis added.)

The third type of claim against the state is dealt with in Sections 63-6-11, 63-6-12, 63-6-13, and 63-6-14. Section 63-6-11 provides:

“Any person having a claim against the state, the settlement of which is not otherwise provided for by law, must present the same to the Board of Examiners, accompanied by a statement showing the facts constituting the claim, verified in the same manner as complaints in civil actions.” (Emphasis added)

The method of examination of claims is set forth in Section 63-6-13 as follows:

“The board must at the time designated proceed to examine and adjust all such claims, and may hear evidence in support of or against them, and shall report to the Legislature such facts and recommendations concerning them as it may think proper. In making its recommendations the board may state and use any official or personal knowledge which any member of the board may have touching such claims.”

By the foregoing sections the Legislature has provided for a comprehensive plan in the three situations above named. There is no specific provision nor is there language from which it may be implied that the Board of Examiners has the power to deny the expendi-

ture by the Board of Education of appropriated funds (when said funds are unexpended).

The foregoing statutory provisions were copied from the law as it existed in Montana and California pertaining to the authority of the Board of Examiners. (Sec. 680, Codes and Statutes of Montana, 1895, Sec. 663, Political Code of California, 1872.) Neither Nevada nor Idaho followed this classification and type of statute defining the authority of the Board of Examiners. The case of *State Library vs. Kenfield*, *supra*, the California court held that disbursements by the Trustees for the State Library were not subject to approval or included in the definition of claims to be submitted to the Board of Examiners. In Montana, in addition to the foregoing statutory authority, there was a statute granting to the State Board of Examiners supervision and control of all expenditures of monies appropriated or received for the use of educational institutions. (850, Revised Codes Montana, 1921.) In spite of this additional statutory authority the Montana court held that the Board of Examiners does not have authority to interfere with the funds appropriated or expenditures authorized by appropriations made by the legislature to the educational institutions.

Therefore, it appears that in the other two states having similar statutory authority, both states have construed these statutes as not being intended to cover disbursements of funds appropriated by a legislature to a specific agency of the government.

If the statutes were not intended to apply to these types of disbursements, then it is logically asked what type of claims were to be presented to the Board of Examiners. The framers of the Idaho Constitution intended the Board of Examiners to be just a Board of Claims as is shown from the following excerpt from the Debates and Proceedings, Idaho Constitutional Convention:

MR. HEYBURN. Now, I renew my amendment to section 18, which is to strike out all after the word 'law' in line 3. The reason is that in the report of the Judiciary committee, Section 11 (10), it is provided that 'the supreme court shall have original jurisdiction to hear claims against the state, but its decision shall be merely recommendatory; no process in the nature of execution shall issue thereon; they shall be reported to the next session of the legislature for its action.' This Section 18 provides that 'they shall also constitute a board of examiners, with power to examine all claims against the state, except salaries or compensation of officers fixed by law. And no claim against the state, except salaries and compensation of officers fixed by law, shall be passed upon by the legislature without first having been considered and acted upon by said board.' We should make rules to be considered by this board and the supreme court and we ought to confer jurisdiction upon one body or the other. If we are going to vest it in this board, there is no necessity to vest it in the supreme court; and if it is to be vested in the supreme court, there is no necessity to have it vested in this board. There is no necessity to hear those claims twice. It deprives the legislature of the power to pass upon them until they

have been passed upon by this board under Section 18. Section 11 (10) of the Judiciary Committee provides that the supreme court shall act in this matter.

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